
ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL SUMMONS 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Council of the Borough of Rotherham 
will be held at Bailey House, Bailey Suite, Rotherham, on Wednesday, 21st April, 
2010 at 2.00 p.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. To submit for approval the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 3rd March, 

2010 - Pages 54A to 62A (Section A)  
  
 
2. To consider any communication received by the Mayor or the Chief Executive 

and to pass a resolution or resolutions thereon.  
  
 
3. To consider any questions from the Public.  
  
 
4. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the 

Standards Committee - Pages 27B to 35B (Section B)  
  
 
5. To receive a report from the Leader and to consider reports, minutes and 

recommendations of the Cabinet  - Pages 154C to 177C (Section C) including 
the following recommendations to Council:-  

 
 
Non-Traditional Property Investment (Minute No. C205) (Pages156C -157C) 
 
Standing Orders (Minute No. C223) (Page 174C) 
 
Parish Review/Community Governance Review (Minute No. C224) (Pages 
174C -176C) 
 
Legislative Changes – Overview and Scrutiny (Minute No. C225) (Page 176C) 
 
Authorisation to Appear in Court Proceedings – Trainee Solicitor (Minute No. 
C226) (Pages 176C – 177C) 

 
 
6. To consider the following reports of meetings of Cabinet Members:-  

 
 
Children and Young People – Pages 69D to 86D (Section D) 
 
Community Development and Engagement – Pages 36E to 38E 
(Section E) 
 
Cultural Services and Sport – Pages 46F to 54F (Section F) 

 



 
Economic Development, Planning and Transportation – Pages 103G to 
126G (Section G) 
 
Health and Social Care – Pages 92H to 103H (Section H) 
 
Housing and Neighbourhoods – Pages 84J to 105J (Section J) 
 
Resources – Pages 42K to 47K (Section K) 
 
Streetpride– Pages 21L to 28L (Section L) 
 
Economic Development, Planning and Transportation and Streetpride – 
Pages 41M to 48M (Section M) 

 
 
7. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the Audit 

Committee - Pages 36P to 44P (Section P)  
  
 
8. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the 

Licensing Board - Pages 21Q to 25Q (Section Q)  
  
 
9. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the 

Planning Board - Pages 165T to 179T (Section T)  
  
 
10. To put questions, if any, to Cabinet Members and Chairmen (or their 

representatives) under Standing Order No. 7(1) and 7(3).  
  
 
11. To put questions, if any, to the designated Members on the discharge of 

functions of the South Yorkshire Police Authority, South Yorkshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority, South Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority and South 
Yorkshire Pensions Authority, in accordance with Standing Order No. 7(5).  

  
 
12. Scrutiny Update - Chairman of the Performance and Scrutiny Overview 

Committee to report  
  
 
13. Parking Policy  

 
 
“That this Council recognises that the current parking policy is detrimental to 
the regeneration of the town and that only a complete change in the attitude 
towards shoppers who drive, will assist Rotherham in its recovery”. 
 
Mover: Councillor Mannion Seconder: Councillor Gilding 

 
 



14. Council Constitution - report herewith  
  
 
15. Absence from Council due to illness - report herewith  
  
 
16. To determine any item which the Mayor is of the opinion should be considered 

as a matter of urgency  
  
 
 
 
T. C. MUMFORD 
Assistant Chief Executive,  Legal and Democratic Services 
 
12th April, 2010 
 
  
  
 



 

 
Page 1 

 

 
 
 
1. Meeting: Council 

2. Date: 21st April 2010 

3. Title: Constitution 

4. Directorate: Chief Executive’s 

 
5. Summary 

 
At their meeting on 9th December 2009, the Council resolved to adopt the proposals 
as published for the “Strong” Leader and Cabinet Model of Governance. 
 
This report proposes changes to the Council’s Constitution to reflect the revised 
governance arrangements. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
That the Constitution, as amended, be adopted to take effect from 9th May 
2010. 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 14Page 1



 

 
Page 2 

 
7.  Proposals and Details  
 
The Council was required by 31st December 2009, to change its governance to either 
a Mayor and Cabinet Model or the “Strong” Leader and Cabinet Model.  The Council 
resolved at its December to adopt the latter model, which will take effect following 
the elections in May. 
 
The Council further resolved that the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and 
Democratic Services) should submit a further report on detailed changes to the 
Constitution to include the revised governance arrangements.  Attached to this report 
is an amended version of the Council’s Constitution.  This reflects the revised 
governance arrangements approved in December.  The principal changes are to 
Article 7, which relates to the Executive.  In future the Council will not appoint the 
Cabinet and allocate the Cabinet Member portfolios at its Annual Meeting.  The 
Council will instead elect the Leader at the Annual Meeting this year and at any 
future Annual Meetings when the Leader’s term of office is due to end.  The Leader 
once elected will be responsible for appointing the Deputy Leader and others 
Members of the Cabinet, allocating Cabinet Member portfolios and agreeing the 
Scheme of Delegation as regards executive functions. 
 
Corresponding amendments to Standing Orders are included in the Cabinet 
recommendations to Council from the Cabinet meeting of 7th April. 
 
It is important that these changes are approved to take effect on the third day after 
the May elections so that they apply at the Annual Meeting on 21st May 2010. 
 
The other Constitutional documents are being updated to reflect recent changes in 
law and procedures within the Council and will be submitted to the Annual Meeting. 
  
8. Finance 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The Council would be in breach of the legislation if it failed to bring into effect the 
change in executive arrangements within the timescale specified.  
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Governance Policy direction for these changes was set out in the White Paper 
‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’ published in October 2006.  Within the 
Council, the actions were taken forward as part of the Local Government Reform 
Implementation Plan and the work of the ‘Our Future’ Group 1. 
 
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Reports to Council of 22nd July, 21st October and 9th December 2009. 
 
Contact Name:  
Tim Mumford, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services), RMBC,  
ext 23500, tim.mumford@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 2



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

 

 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

THE CONSTITUTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T.C. Mumford, 

 Assistant Chief Executive 

(Legal and Democratic Services) 

Page 3



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

THE CONSTITUTION 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 Rotherham Borough Council  

 The Operation of the Council  

 

ARRANGEMENT OF ARTICLES 

PART I 

 

THE CONSTITUTION, THE COUNCIL AND CITIZENS’ RIGHTS 

 

Article   

1 The Constitution  

2  Members of the Council  

3  The full Council  

4  Chairing the full Council  

5  Decision-making  

6  Citizens’ rights and the Council  

 

PART II 

 

THE EXECUTIVE, ETC. 

 

7  The executive  

8  Overview and scrutiny committees  

9  Regulatory boards and other committees 

10 The Audit Committee  

11  The Standards Committee  

 

PART III 

 

AREA ASSEMBLIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 

 

12  Area assemblies and area assembly co-ordinating groups  

13  Joint arrangements  

 

PART IV 

 

OFFICERS’ ROLES 

 

14  Officers  

15  The Chief Executive’s role  

16  The monitoring officer’s role  

17  The chief finance officer’s role 

Page 4



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

PART V 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

18  Finance, contracts and legal matters  

19  Review and revision of the Constitution  

20  Suspension, interpretation and publication  

 of the Constitution  

 

THE APPENDICES 

 

 

Procedures 

 

Appendix 1.  The Executive Procedure Rules 

Appendix 2.  The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Appendix 3.  The Access to Information Rules 

Appendix 4.  The Council’s Standing Orders 

Appendix 5.  The Council’s Financial Regulations 

 

Members and Officers’ Codes of Conduct 

 

Appendix 6.  The Members’ Code of Conduct 

Appendix 7.  The Officers’ Code of Conduct 

 

Members’ Allowances and Code of Practice 

 

Appendix 8.  The Members’ Allowances Scheme 

Appendix 9.  The Members’ Code of Practice 

 

Delegation of functions 

 

Appendix 10. The Scheme of Delegation for Members and Officers 

 

 

  

 

Page 5



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

THE CONSTITUTION 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Rotherham Borough Council 

 

The Council is a metropolitan borough council, which means that it is responsible for 

providing all the services that a local authority provides to local people. These services 

or functions include adult services, children and young people’s services, consumer 

protection, education, electoral registration, environmental health, highways and 

parking, housing, libraries, museums and art galleries, planning and development 

control, a variety of licensing and registration functions and refuse collection and 

disposal. 

 

Rotherham is at the centre of the UK and in the heart of the South Yorkshire 

regeneration area. The borough spans some 118 square miles linked by a network of 

706 miles of roads and 17 miles of motorway. While still a major steel producer, it has 

widely diversified its industrial base in recent years, with growth in sectors including 

information technology, high-value engineering, food, healthcare, construction and 

services. 

 

Although 70 per-cent rural, Rotherham is a thriving centre for business. The Dukeries 

and the Peak District lie nearby, to the south and southwest, while to the north and 

northwest are the sweeping moors of West and North Yorkshire. The town of Rotherham 

itself is the main urban centre, surrounded by a variety of villages and townships, such 

as Anston, Aston, Dinnington, Kiveton Park, Maltby, Rawmarsh, Swinton, and Wath-

upon-Dearne, as well as other smaller suburban and rural communities. Many act to 

some extent as dormitories for larger conurbations such as Rotherham itself, Sheffield, 

Barnsley, Doncaster and Worksop. 

 

The children of the borough are educated at 3 nurseries, 99 primary schools, 16 

secondary schools and 6 special schools. Recreation is provided at 4 sports and leisure 

centres, 2 museums, 1 art gallery and 15 libraries. 

 

Over a quarter of a million people living in the borough are served by 63 members of the 

Council.  Some members of the Council also sit on joint authorities established to deal 

with passenger transport, police and fire and rescue services provided throughout South 

Yorkshire. 

 

Three Members of Parliament serve the peoples of the borough. Their respective 

constituencies are Rotherham, Rother Valley and Wentworth and Dearne. The 

constituency boundary of Wentworth & Dearne extends into the Barnsley MBC area. The 

MP for this constituency, therefore, also represents electors from two electoral wards of 

Barnsley MBC but the greater part of the constituency is contained within the Rotherham 

area. 

Page 6



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

The Operation of the Council 

 

The Council’s Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made 

and the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 

accountable to local people.  

 

The Constitution comprises 20 articles. The articles set out the basic rules governing the 

manner in which the Council conducts its business. The Appendices to the Constitution 

contain more detailed procedures and codes of practice regulating different aspects of 

the Council’s business. 

 

The Council has adopted the “strong” leader with a cabinet form of executive. The 

executive is responsible for most day-to-day decisions, including major decisions, which 

are publicised in advance in so far as they can be anticipated. Executive decisions are 

made in accordance with the Council’s overall policies and budget. Any decision that falls 

outside the budget or policy framework must be referred to the full Council to decide. 

 

The Council’s overview and scrutiny committees monitor the work of the executive and 

enable local people to have a greater say in the Council’s business by holding public 

inquiries into matters of local concern. The Council’s Performance and Scrutiny Overview 

Committee and Children’s and Young People's Services Scrutiny Panel can “call-in” 

certain executive decisions that have been made but not yet implemented and question 

the appropriateness of the decision. The executive can also consult overview and 

scrutiny committees before making a decision or shaping policy. 

 

The Council’s area assemblies enable local people to have input into Council business. 

Area assembly meetings are held in public and include the councillors for the particular 

area. 

 

The Council’s Licensing Board and Planning Board are responsible for discharging 

functions that are not the responsibility of the executive. These functions are regulatory 

in nature, for example the licensing of operators of hackney carriages and private hire 

vehicles and the determination of planning applications.  Liquor licensing is dealt with by 

a Licensing Committee comprising members of the Licensing Board.  

 

The Council’s complaints panels consider complaints from individual members of the 

public who are not satisfied with the standard of a Council service. Subject to any legal 

mechanism for challenging or appealing against a Council decision, a member of the 

public may complain about the particular decision in so far as it concerns or affects him 

or her. 

 

The Council’s officers give advice, implement decisions and manage the day-to-day 

delivery of services.  The Council’s Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic 

Services) and Strategic Director of Finance have a duty to ensure that the Council acts 

within the law and manages its resources wisely.  

 

The Council’s Standards Committee is responsible for ensuring high standards of conduct 

by councillors and co-opted members and overseeing other probity issues. 

 

The Council is involved in partnership working both internally through its joint venture 

partnership with RBT Limited and externally through the Local Strategic Partnership, the 

Children and Young People’s Board and other arrangements. 

 

Page 7



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

PART I 

THE CONSTITUTION, THE COUNCIL AND CITIZENS’ RIGHTS 

 

1 The Constitution 

Exercise of powers and duties 

(1) The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law 

and this Constitution. 

The Constitution 

(2) This Constitution, together with the documents contained in the appendices to 

the Constitution, is the Constitution of Rotherham Borough Council. 

Purpose of the Constitution 

(3) The purpose of the Constitution is to - 

• enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in partnership 

with citizens, businesses and other organisations; 

• support the active involvement of citizens in the process of council decision-

making; 

• help councillors represent their constituents more effectively; 

• enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively; 

• create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to public 

account; 

• ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they were 

directly involved; 

• ensure that those responsible for decision-making are clearly identifiable to 

local people and that they explain the reasons for decisions; and 

• provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the community. 

Interpretation of the Constitution 

(4) Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different courses 

of action, the Council will always choose the option that it thinks is closest to the 
purposes stated in article 1 (3). 

2 Members of the Council 

Composition and eligibility 

(1) The Council comprises 63 members or Councillors. 

(2) Only registered voters of the borough or those living, or working or occupying 

premises in the borough are eligible to hold the office of councillor. 

 

 

Page 8



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

Election and term of councillors 

(3) The ordinary election of a third of all councillors usually takes place on the first 

Thursday in May in each year.  In 2013 and every fourth year thereafter there will 
be no regular election.  

(4) The term of office of councillors is four years starting on the fourth day after 

being elected and finishing on the fourth day after the date of the regular election 
four years later.   

Roles and functions of all councillors 

(5) All councillors will - 

• collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a number of strategic 

and corporate management functions; 

• represent their communities and bring their views into the Council’s decision-

making process, that is to say, become the advocate of and for their 

communities; 

• deal with individual casework and act as an advocate for constituents in 
resolving particular concerns or grievances; 

• balance different interests identified within the ward and represent the ward 

as a whole; 

• be involved in decision-making; 

• be available to represent the Council on other bodies; and 

• maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics. 

Rights and duties 

(6) Councillors have the right of access to the documents, information, land and 

buildings that are owned or in the possession of the Council in so far as such access 

is necessary for the proper discharge of their functions and in accordance with the 
law. 

(7) Without the Council’s consent, councillors must not make public information 

which is confidential or exempt or divulge information given in confidence to 
anyone other than another councillor or an officer entitled to know it. 

(8) The terms "confidential information" and "exempt information” are explained in 

the Council’s Access to Information Rules. 

Conduct 

(9) Councillors must at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the 

Member/Officer Protocol. 

Allowances 

(10) Councillors are entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the Members’ 

Allowances Scheme. 

 

 

Page 9



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

3 The full Council 

Policy framework 

(1) The policy framework means the following plans and strategies –  

• The Adult Learning Plan 

• The Annual Library Plan;  

• The Children and Young People’s Plan; 

• The Corporate Plan; 

• The Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy; 

• The Development Plan documents and the plans and alterations which 

together comprise the Development Plan; 

• The Licensing Authority Policy Statement;  

• The Local Transport Plan; 

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy; 

• The plan or strategy for the control of the Council’s borrowing, investments or 

capital expenditure or for determining the Council’s minimum revenue 
provision; 

• The Sustainable Community Strategy;  

• The Youth Justice Plan; 

• The adoption or approval of any plan or strategy (whether statutory or non-

statutory) that the Council has determined should be taken by the full 

Council; 

Budget 

(2) The budget includes –  

• the allocation of financial resources to different services and projects; 

• proposed contingency funds;  

• establishment and use of reserves and also review of reserves and balances; 

• setting the council tax and decisions relating to the control of the Council’s 
borrowing requirement; 

• control of the Council’s capital expenditure and the setting of virement limits. 

Housing land transfer 

(3) “Housing land transfer” means – 

• the approval or adoption of applications (whether in draft form or not) to the 

Secretary of State for approval of a programme of disposal of 500 or more 
properties to a person under the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008; or  

• the disposal of land used for residential purposes where approval is required 

under sections 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985. 

Page 10



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

Functions exercised by the full Council 

(4) Only the full Council will exercise the functions of –  

• adopting and changing the Constitution; 

• approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any application 

to the Secretary of State in respect of any housing land transfer; 

• making decisions about any matter (subject to the urgency procedure 

contained in the Access to Information Rules) in the discharge of an 

executive function, where the decision-maker is minded to make it in a 

manner which is not covered by the policy framework or budget; 

• electing the Mayor and Deputy Mayor; 

• electing the Leader of the Council as and when required; 

• agreeing and amending the terms of reference for committees, deciding on 

their composition and making appointments to them; 

• appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is an 

executive function or has been delegated by the Council; 

• adopting an allowances scheme;  

• changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary alderman or 

freedom of the borough; 

• making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and promoting 

or opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills;  

• deciding which functions should be undertaken by the full Council rather 

than the Executive in matters where the Council has a choice as to this;  

• confirming the appointment of the Chief Executive, who is the head of paid 

service; and 

• making decisions about all other matters that by law must be reserved to 

the full Council. 

Council meetings 

(5) A Council meeting is classified as an ordinary meeting, an extraordinary 

meeting or the annual meeting, but they are all conducted in accordance with the 
Council’s Standing Orders.  

Responsibility for functions 

(6) The Council’s arrangements for the discharge of functions are set out in the 

Council’s Delegation Scheme for Members and Officers. 

4 Chairing the full Council 

Roles and functions of the Mayor 

(1) The Mayor and in his or her absence the Deputy Mayor have the roles and 

functions set out in article 4 (2). 

(2) The Mayor is elected by the Council annually and performs a ceremonial role as 

the representative of the Council and its citizens as well as being responsible for – 

Page 11



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• upholding and promoting the purposes of the Constitution, and interpreting the 

Constitution when necessary; 

• presiding over meetings of the full Council so that its business can be carried 

out efficiently and with regard to the rights of councillors and the interests of 
the community; 

• ensuring that the full Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of 

concern to local communities and the place at which councillors who are not 

members of the Cabinet are able to hold the Cabinet and individual Cabinet 
members and committee chairmen to account; 

• resolving any dispute on the interpretation of the Council’s Standing Orders 

and any Council proceedings; 

• promoting public involvement in the Council’s activities; and 

• attending such civic and ceremonial functions that the Council and he or she 

consider appropriate.  

First citizen 

(3) The Mayor has precedence, that is to say he or she is the first citizen of the 

borough. 

Promotion of the Council 

(4) The Mayor together with the Leader of the Council will promote the Council as a 

whole and act as a focal point for the community. 

Ceremonial matters 

(5)  The Mayor and Deputy Mayor will carry out civic and ceremonial duties 

throughout their year of office as they consider appropriate and (following 

discussions with officers) necessary.  In so doing they will uphold the dignity and 
honour bestowed upon them. 

5 Decision-making 

Responsibility for decision-making 

(1) The Council will issue and keep up-to-date a record of which part of the Council, 

which individual member or which officer has responsibility for particular types of 

decisions or decisions relating to particular areas or functions. 

(2) The record is the Scheme of Delegation for Members and Officers. 

Principles of decision-making 

(3) All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with certain immutable 

principles, which are – 

• proportionality (that is to say, the action proposed must be proportionate to 

the desired outcome); 

• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

• respect for human rights (see below for further details); 

• a presumption in favour of openness; and 

Page 12



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

Decisions reserved to full Council 

(4) Decisions relating to the functions listed in article 3 (4) will be made by the full 
Council and not delegated. 

Decision-making by the full Council 

(5) When considering any matter, the Council meeting will follow, subject to article 

5 (9), the Council’s Standing Orders. 

Decision-making by the executive 

(6) When considering any matter, the executive will follow, subject to article 5 (9), 
the Executive Procedure Rules. 

Decision-making by overview and scrutiny committees 

(7) When considering any matter, overview and scrutiny committees will follow the 

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 

Decision-making by other committees and sub-committees established by the 

Council 

(8) When considering any matter, other Council committees and sub-committees 

will follow, subject to article 5 (9), those parts of the Council’s Standing Orders that 
apply to them. 

Decision-making by Council bodies acting as tribunals 

(9) In acting as a tribunal or in a quasi-judicial manner for either of the purposes 

specified in article 5 (10), the Council, a councillor or an officer must follow a 

proper procedure which accords with the requirements of natural justice and the 

right to a fair trial contained in article 6 of the European Convention on Human 
Rights 

(10) Other than for the purpose of giving advice, the specified purposes are the 

determination or consideration of civil rights and obligations or the criminal 

responsibility of any person. 

6 Citizens’ rights and the Council 

Right to vote and sign petitions 

(1) Citizens on the electoral roll for the borough have the right to vote and sign a 

petition to request a referendum for an elected mayor form of constitution. 

Information 

(2) Citizens have the right to - 

• attend meetings of the Council and its committees except where confidential or 

exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and the meeting is, therefore, held 
in private; 

• attend meetings of the executive when key decisions (as defined in the 

Executive Procedure Rules) and other decisions are being considered, except 

where confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed and the 
meeting is therefore held in private; 

Page 13



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• find out from the forward plan what key decisions will be taken by the 

executive and when;  

• see reports and background papers and any records of decisions made by the 

Council and the executive; and 

• inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the Council’s 

external auditors.  

• such other information as may be specified in the Council’s Publication Scheme 

under the Freedom of Information Act 2000; 

• make requests to the Council under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or 

the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 for information not contained 
within the Publication Scheme. 

Participation 

(3) Citizens have the right to submit written questions to meetings of the Council 

and to attend and ask questions at meetings of the Cabinet and overview and 

scrutiny committees.  They may also contribute to investigations undertaken by 
overview and scrutiny committees.   

Complaints 

(4) Citizens have the right to complain to - 

• the Council itself under its complaints procedure; 

• the local government ombudsman;  

• the Council’s Standards Committee about a breach of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

• The Information Commissioner about a refusal by the Council to disclose 

information. 

PART II 

THE EXECUTIVE, ETC. 

7 The executive 

Role 

(1) The Council has adopted a “strong” Leader and Cabinet form of executive.  The 

executive will carry out all of the Council’s functions that are not the responsibility 
of any other part of the Council, whether by law or under the Constitution. 

Form and composition 

(2) The Cabinet will consist of the Council Leader together with up to nine 

councillors appointed to the Cabinet by the Leader. 

Leader 

(3) The Leader will be a councillor elected to the position of Leader by the Council 

at its annual meeting in 2010.  He or she will hold office until the day when the 

Council holds its first annual meeting after the Leader’s normal day of retirement as 
a Councillor unless -  

Page 14



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• he or she resigns from the office; or 

• he or she is suspended from being a councillor under Part III of the Local 

Government Act 2000 (although he or she may resume office at the end of 
the period of suspension); or 

• he or she is no longer a councillor; or 

• he or she is removed from office by resolution of the Council, whereupon his 

or her term of office as leader shall end on the day of that Council meeting. 

(4) If any of the events in article 7 (3) occurs, then the Council must elect a new 

leader either at the same meeting of the Council in which the event occurred or at 
the next following meeting of the Council after the event.  

Deputy Leader 

(5) The Leader shall appoint one of the other members of the Cabinet to be his or 

her deputy. 

(6) The Deputy Leader shall hold office for the same term as the Leader unless – 

• he or she resigns from the office 

• he or she is suspended from being a councillor under Part III of the Local 

Government Act 2000 (although he or she may resume office at the end of 

the period of suspension) or 

• he or she is no longer a councillor or 

• he or she is removed from office by decision of the Leader. 

(7) If the Leader removes the Deputy Leader from office he or she shall appoint 

another member of the Cabinet as Deputy Leader and shall immediately notify the 

Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) who will notify the other 
members of the Council as soon as reasonably practicable. 

(8) The Deputy Leader must act in place of the Leader if for any reason the Leader 

is unable to act or the office of Leader is vacant, until respectively the Leader is 

able to resume his or her duties or the Council appoints a new leader. 

(9) If for any reason the Leader and Deputy Leader are both unable to act or their 

offices are vacant, then the Cabinet shall act in the Leader’s place or arrange for 

another member of the Cabinet to do so. 

Other Cabinet members 

(10) Other Cabinet members will hold office – 

• they resign from office; or 

• they are suspended from being councillors under Part III of the Local 

Government Act 2000 (although they may resume office at the end of the 

period of suspension); or 

• they are no longer councillors; or 

• they are removed from office, either individually or collectively, by decision of 

the Leader. 

Page 15



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

(11) If the Leader removes a Cabinet member from office, or appoints a member of 

the Council as a Cabinet member, the Leader shall directly notify the Assistant 

Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) who will notify the other members 
of the Council as soon as reasonably practicable. 

Proceedings of the Cabinet 

(12) Proceedings of the Cabinet will take place in accordance with the Executive 

Procedure Rules and the Council’s Standing Orders. 

Responsibility for functions 

(13)  The Cabinet shall have power to appoint a committee or committees to deal 

with such of its functions as it may determine or as may be determined by the 
Leader. 

(14) The Cabinet may establish a committee to deal with urgent executive matters 

arising during the month of August when the Council is in recess, but subject still to 

the Executive Procedure Rules, Access to Information Rules and Standing Orders 

and Financial Regulations of the Council. 

(15) The Leader shall allocate Cabinet portfolios to the Cabinet members, which will 

be set out in the Executive Procedure Rules and Leader’s Scheme of Delegation.  

(16) The Leader may discharge any executive functions himself or herself, and may 

arrange for them to be discharged by the Cabinet collectively, another member of 

the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an area assembly co-ordinating group, an 
officer or by joint arrangements with another authority or authorities. 

(17) The responsibility for the discharge of executive functions will be set out in the 

Scheme of Delegation for Members and Officers, which will be updated to include 
any changes made by the Leader. 

Advisors 

(18) The Leader may appoint councillors to act as advisors to some or all of the 

Cabinet members.  Such advisors are not part of the executive.  Members of the 

Cabinet may consult their advisors before taking executive decisions but are not 
obliged to do so. 

8 Overview and scrutiny committees 

Terms of reference 

(1) The Council will appoint the overview and scrutiny committees specified in 

Schedules 1 and 2 to the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules to discharge 

between them the functions conferred by section 21 of the Local Government Act 

2000, namely – 

• to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection 

with the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the 
executive; 

• to make reports or recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet with 

respect to the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the 
executive; 

• to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection 

with the discharge of any functions which are not the responsibility of the 
executive; 

Page 16



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• to make reports or recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet with 

respect to the discharge of any functions which are not the responsibility of 

the executive;  

• to make reports or recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet on matters 

which affect the borough or the inhabitants of the borough. 

General role 

(2) Within their terms of reference, overview and scrutiny committees will between 

them –  

• review or scrutinise decisions or review and scrutinise decisions made or 

actions taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s 
functions; 

• make reports or recommendations to the full Council or the Cabinet (or both) 

and to a joint committee, area assembly or area assembly co-ordinating 
group in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions; 

• consider any matter affecting the borough or its inhabitants; and 

• exercise in the case of the Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee 

and the Children and Young People’s Services Scrutiny Panel the right to call-

in for reconsideration decisions made but not yet implemented by the 
executive or an area assembly co-ordinating group (if applicable). 

Policy development and review 

(3) Overview and scrutiny committees may –  

• assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of its budget and policy 

framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues; 

• conduct research and consult with local communities and others, in the 

analysis of policy issues and possible options; 

• consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community 

participation in the development of policy options; 

• question members of the Cabinet and committees and chief officers about 

their views on issues and proposals affecting the borough; and 

• liaise with other external organisations operating in the borough, whether 

national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local communities 
are enhanced by collaborative working. 

Scrutiny 

(4) Overview and scrutiny committees may between them – 

• review and scrutinise the decisions made by, and performance of, the executive 

and committees and council officers both in relation to specific decisions and 

generally; 

• review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 

objectives, performance targets and particular service areas; 

• question members of the Cabinet and committees and chief officers about their 

decisions and performance, whether generally (in comparison with service 

Page 17



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

plans and targets over a period of time) or in relation to particular decisions, 
initiatives or projects; 

• make recommendations to the Cabinet, the committees and the Council arising 

from the outcome of the scrutiny process; 

• review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies (including health 

authorities) in the borough and invite reports from them by requesting them to 

address the particular overview and scrutiny committee and local people about 

their activities and performance;  

• scrutinise issues affecting the well-being of the population of the borough 

• question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent); 

• consider any requests submitted by a member of the Council under the 

councillor call for action procedure.   

Finance 

(5)  Overview and scrutiny committees may exercise overall responsibility for any 

finances made available to them. 

Annual report 

(6) The Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee will report annually to the 

full Council on the operation of overview and scrutiny committees and make 

recommendations where appropriate for future work programmes and amended 
working methods. 

Officers 

(7) Overview and scrutiny committees may exercise overall responsibility for the 

work programme of the officers employed to support their work. 

Proceedings of overview and scrutiny committees 

(8) Overview and scrutiny committees will conduct their proceedings in accordance 

with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 

9 Audit Committee 

The Council has established an Audit Committee comprising five non-executive 

members of the Council.  The Committee will be attended by a representative of 

the Council’s external auditors as well as senior officers of the Council.  The 
Committee’s remit is –  

• to consider all issues relating to audit matters, both internal and external; 

• to monitor and review the effectiveness of risk management systems, including 

systems of internal control; 

• to consider the preparation and monitoring of the internal audit plan; 

• to consider summary reports of each internal audit and value for money study 

undertaken; 

• to consider the external audit plan; 

• to consider reports from the external auditor, including value for money, 

systems and final accounts audits; 

Page 18



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• to review and monitor the performance of internal audit; 

• to review and monitor the anti-fraud strategy and initiatives; 

• to ensure the receipt of ‘Best Value’ from all audit resources; 

• to review and monitor corporate governance matters in accordance with audit 

guidelines. 

The Audit Committee will consider the external auditor’s annual report on the 

Council’s statement of accounts income and expenditure and will also consider the 

SAS 610 report from the external auditor.  However, the external auditor’s 

management letter will be presented to the full Council. 

10 Regulatory boards and other committees  

The Council will appoint a Planning Board and a Licensing Board to discharge the 

planning and licensing functions which are the responsibility of those boards under 
the Scheme of Delegation for Members and Officers. 

The Council has established a separately constituted Liquor Licensing Committee.  

This Committee comprises fifteen members drawn from membership of the 

Licensing Board.  The Committee will perform the functions described in the 

Scheme of Delegation for Members and Officers. 

11 The Council’s Standards Committee 

Membership 

(1) The Council’s Standards Committee will be composed of – 

• four Councillors other than the Mayor and Leader; 

• eight persons who are not councillors or officers of the Council or any other 

council or body having a standards committee (independent members); 

• one three members of a town or parish councils within the borough (parish 

members). 

Independent members 

(2) Independent members and parish members are entitled to vote at meetings of 
the Council’s Standards Committee. 

Parish members 

(3) One of the parish members must be present when matters relating to town and 

parish councils or their members are being considered. 

Chairing the Committee 

(4) The chair and vice-chair of the Committee shall be independent members. 

Primary roles and functions 

(5) The Council’s Standards Committee’s primary roles and functions are – 

• promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by councillors and co-

opted members; 

Page 19



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• assisting councillors and co-opted members to observe the Members’ Code of 

Conduct; 

• advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of 

Conduct; 

• monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

• advising, training or arranging to train councillors and co-opted members on 

matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

• granting dispensations to councillors and co-opted members from 

requirements relating to interests in the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

• dealing with any written allegations that a member of the Council or co-opted 

member is in breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct; 

• dealing with any report from a case tribunal or interim case tribunal, and any 

report from the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) in 

his capacity as the monitoring officer or from an ethical standards officer of 
Standards for England.  

• Performing similar functions in respect of all town and parish councils within 

the borough. 

Standard’s Committee’s additional roles 

(6) The Standards Committee additional roles include –  

• preparing and reviewing protocols, local codes, advice and guidance; 

• overview of the whistle-blowing policy (the Confidential Reporting Code); 

• review of the application of Standing Orders and Financial Regulations; 

• overview of complaints handling and local government ombudsman 

investigations;  

• consideration of any reports or investigation which casts doubt on the honesty 

and integrity of the Council and recommending action to the Council or 
Cabinet. 

PART III 

AREA ASSEMBLIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 

 

12 Area assemblies and area assembly co-ordinating groups committees 

 

Area assemblies 

 

(1) The Council has approved 7 area assemblies which between them cover the 

whole borough.  The area covered by each assembly comprises 3 electoral wards of 

the borough.   

 

(2) Area assemblies include all of the elected members for the electoral wards within 

the area and representatives of other public bodies, voluntary and commercial 

organisations operating within the area.  They are open to members of the public. 

 

Page 20



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

(3) Area assemblies shall meet at least six times a year at publicised locations within 

the areas they cover. 

 

(4) Area assemblies shall –  

 

•  encourage access and participation from local residents in the democratic 
process; 

•  develop a single area plan for the area assembly that is recognised by all 
agencies operating within the area; 

•  set local delivery targets and monitor progress towards these targets; 
•  review the impact and co-ordination of Council policies and services and those 

of other organisations who deliver services in the areas which the assembly 

covers; 

•  consider issues of local concern and submit reports to the relevant Cabinet 
member, Cabinet, scrutiny and Rotherham Partnership on these; 

•  comment on issues referred by Cabinet, the relevant Cabinet member, scrutiny 
and Rotherham Partnership; 

• indicate views on a range of issues which require local consultation; 

• receive and consider the report of any task and finish group set up by the co-

ordinating group and determine any appropriate action. 

• Consider funding proposals for the expenditure of devolved budgets submitted 

to the area assembly by the co-ordinating group. 

 

Area assembly co-ordinating groups 

(5) Each area assembly has a co-ordinating group which is a committee of the 

Council. 

(6) The co-ordinating group shall comprise the 9 elected members for the electoral 

wards within the area, 6 representatives of partner organisations and 3 community 

representatives. 

(7) The role of the area assembly co-ordinating groups shall be:- 

•  to report on a regular basis to the public meeting of the area assembly on all 
matters relevant to its terms of reference; 

•  to meet on a regular basis prior to each of the public meetings of the area 
assembly and to determine and co-ordinate the agendas for those meetings; 

•  to set up and co-ordinate “task and finish” groups (time limited) based on the 
priority themes to propose solutions to specific local issues which are not being 

dealt with elsewhere within the Council or by partner organisations; 

•  to receive an annual report with updated area profiles and consider the 
implications for service planning and delivery; 

•  to agree a consultation plan for the area and ensure that information received 
from this consultation is made available to partner agencies to inform higher 

level borough wide planning; 

•  to agree an area plan for the area that is consistent with the community 
strategy; 

•  to monitor the effectiveness of collaborative working arrangements of the 
partners to the area assembly through twice-yearly performance and service 

reports; 

Page 21



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

•  to direct any policy issues arising out of operational experience within the 
Council or the Rotherham Partnership; 

•  to consider and report to public meetings of the area assembly upon the effects 
of any policy changes affecting services being delivered in the area; 

•  to consider requests and deal with any issues arising from public meetings of 
the area assembly or from individual members of the public; 

•  to consider requests for action under the Council’s “councillor call for action” 
procedure; 

•  to ensure that proposals for the expenditure of any budget allocated to the area 
assembly meet the eligibility criteria; 

•    to submit such proposals for consideration by the area assembly and then 
make recommendations on the proposals to the Cabinet member for 

Neighbourhoods who will arrange for the recommendations to be submitted to 

Cabinet for ratification; 

•  to make quarterly reports to scrutiny on the progress of projects approved for 
the expenditure of its budget allocation and the outcomes achieved. 

Delegations 

(7) Included within the Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Members and Officers 

will be details of any delegations by the Council or the Leader to area assembly co-
ordinating groups, including details of – 

• which functions are the responsibility of the executive and which are not and 

any limits on delegation; and 

• the composition and membership of each committee; and  

• any budget allocated to each committee. 

Area assembly co-ordinating groups– access to information 

(8) Area assembly co-ordinating groups will comply with the Access to Information 
Rules. 

(9) Agendas and notices for area committee meetings that deal with both functions 

of the executive and functions that are not the responsibility of the executive must 

state clearly which items are which. 

Terms of reference 

(10) the full terms of reference of area assemblies and area assembly co-ordinating 

groups will be set out in the area assembly and area assembly co-ordinating 
groups' terms of reference. 

13 Joint arrangements 

Arrangements to promote well-being 

(1) In order to promote the economic, social or environmental well-being of the 

borough and its inhabitants, the Council or the Cabinet may - 

• enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body; 

• co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any person or 

body; and 

Page 22



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that person or 

body. 

Joint arrangements with other councils 

(2) The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more councils or their 

executives (or both) to exercise non-executive functions in any of the participating 
authorities, or advise the Council.  

(3) The Cabinet may establish joint arrangements with one or more councils, or 

their executives, or both to exercise functions that are executive functions.  

(4) Joint arrangements may involve the appointment of joint committees with these 

other councils. 

(5) Where a joint committee is discharging executive functions the Cabinet may 

appoint executive members only to a joint committee and these members need not 
reflect the political composition of the Council as a whole. 

(6) The Council has entered into the following joint arrangements with the councils 

of Sheffield, Barnsley and Doncaster and created the following joint committees:- 

The South Yorkshire Archaeological Joint Committee 

The South Yorkshire Archives Joint Committee 

The South Yorkshire Trading Standards Joint Committee 

Access to information 

(7) The Access to Information Rules apply to joint committees. 

(8) If all the members of a joint committee are members of the executive in each of 

the participating councils, the parts of the Access to Information Rules applicable to 
the executive apply to the joint committee. 

(9) If the joint committee contains members who are not on the executive of any 

participating council, the parts of the Access to Information Rules applicable to non-
executive meetings apply to the joint committee. 

Delegation to and from other councils 

(10) The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another council or, in 

certain circumstances, the executive of another council. 

(11) The Cabinet may delegate executive functions to another council or, in certain 

circumstances, the executive of another council. 

(12) The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another council 

shall be reserved to the full Council in the case of a non-executive function and to 
the Leader in the case of an executive function. 

Contracting out 

(13) The Council (for functions which are not executive functions) or the Cabinet 

(for executive functions) may contract out to another body or organisation 

functions which may be exercised – 

• by an officer and which are subject to an order under section 70 of the 
Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994, or  

Page 23



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• under contracting arrangements where the contractor acts as the Council’s 

agent under usual contacting principles,  

provided there is no delegation of the Council’s discretionary decision-making 

beyond what may be permitted by any such order. 

Strategic Partnerships 

(14) The council may establish strategic partnerships with one or more public or 

private or voluntary organisations and may appoint members to any such strategic 
partnerships. 

RBT 

(15) The Council has entered into a strategic partnership with BT through the 

formation of a joint venture company, RBT (Connect) Limited (RBT).  The Council is 

represented on the board of the company.  The Council has entered into contract 

with the company for the delivery over 12 years from 2003 of the following 
services:- 

• Information Technology 

• Payroll 

• Human Resources 

• Revenues and Benefits 

• Rotherham Connect, a single delivery point for customer enquiries 

• Procurement. 

2010 Rotherham Limited 

(16) The Council has formed an arm’s length management company, 2010 

Rotherham Limited, to manage its council housing.  The Council has entered into a 

management agreement with the company which allocates responsibility as 

between the Council and the company for the discharge of the Council’s housing 

functions.  The Council is represented on the company by five members nominated 

by the executive, who, together with five tenant representatives and five 
independent members comprise the board. 

Rotherham Partnership Board (Local Strategic Partnership) 

(17)  The Council participates in the Rotherham Partnership Board on which local 

organisations and agencies are represented.  The Council has a statutory 

responsibility to produce the Sustainable Community Strategy and does this in 
consultation with its partners on the board. 

The board is a single non-statutory multi-agency body which matches the Council’s 

boundaries and aims to bring together at a local level the different parts of the 
public, private, community and voluntary sectors. 

The role of the Rotherham Partnership Board includes ensuring that the strategies 

of all participating organisations are consistent with the wider Sustainable 
Community Strategy and objectives.  The board’s roles include:- 

• setting aspirational targets; 

• overseeing performance management; 

Page 24



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

• overcoming obstacles to performance. 

These responsibilities are shared by all partners, but are a key part of the Council’s 

responsibility as community leader. 

Rotherham Children and Young Peoples Board 

(18) Under the Children’s Act 2004, the Council is under a duty to promote 

cooperation between itself, partners and certain other bodies with a view to      

improving the wellbeing of children within the Council’s area. 

The Council, in conjunction with NHS Rotherham, the police, probation and 

voluntary sector has established the Rotherham Children's and Young People’s 

Board, to ensure the effective development of partnership working and ensure that 

all Rotherham children and young people have the best life opportunities.  It is the 
role of the People’s Board to: 

• agree the strategic policy framework for children and young people’s services; 

• raise standards and improve the quality and effectiveness of services; 

• ensure cost effectiveness, including consideration of proposals for pooled 
budgets and lead commissioning.   

PART IV 

OFFICERS’ ROLES 

14 Officers 

General 

(1) The full Council may engage such staff (referred to as officers) as it considers 

necessary to carry out its functions.  The Council has established a Staffing 
Committee whose remit includes: 

• conditions of service and remuneration of the Chief Executive and chief 

officers; 

• employment policies and procedures; 

• responses to consultations; 

• responses to emergency staffing matters. 

Conduct 

(2) Officers will comply with the Code of Official Conduct. 

Employment 

(3) The recruitment, selection and dismissal of officers will be in accordance with 

rules established by the Council for that purpose.  Appointments of all staff except 
the Chief Executive and designated chief officers will be made by officers  

Chief officers 

(4) The Council through its Appointments Panel will engage persons who will be 

designated chief officers, including the chief officers responsible for the functions 

described in articles 15 (the Chief Executive’s role), 16 (the monitoring officer’s 

role) and 17 (the chief finance officer’s role).  

Chief Executive 

Page 25



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

Designation of statutory posts 

(5) The Council has designated the Chief Executive as the head of paid service, the 

Strategic Director of Finance as the chief finance officer and the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) as the monitoring officer. 

Duty to provide sufficient resources to chief finance officer and monitoring officer 

(6) The Council will provide the Strategic Director of Finance and the Assistant Chief 

Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) with the officers, accommodation and 

other resources that are in their opinion sufficient to allow their duties to be 
performed. 

Management Structure 

(7) The Chief Executive will prepare and publicise a document called the 

Management Structure describing the overall departmental structure of the Council 
and showing the management structure and deployment of officers.   

15  The Chief Executive’s role 

Responsibilities 

(1) The Chief Executive is the head of paid service and he or she is responsible 

for – 

• ensuring the overall corporate management and operation of the Council 

(including overall management responsibility for all Council officers); 

• providing professional advice to all parts of the Council in the decision-making 

process; 

• representing the Council on partnership and external bodies, as required by 

law or by the Council. 

Discharge of council functions 

(2) The Chief Executive may report to the full Council as necessary on the manner 

in which the discharge of the Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and 

grade of officers required for the discharge of those functions and the organisation 
of officers. 

Restrictions on Chief Executive’s role 

(3) The Chief Executive may not be the monitoring officer but may hold the post of 

chief finance officer if a qualified accountant. 

16 The monitoring officer’s role 

Maintaining the Constitution 

(1) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will maintain an 

up-to-date version of the Constitution and will ensure that it is widely available for 

consultation by members, staff and the public. 

Unlawful decisions or maladministration 

(2) After consulting with the Chief Executive and Strategic Director of Finance, the 

Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will report to the full 

Council or to the Cabinet (in relation to an executive function) if he or she considers 

Page 26



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness, or if any 
decision or omission has given rise to maladministration.  

(3) A report submitted to the full Council or to the Cabinet by the Assistant Chief 

Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) under article 16 (2) will have the effect 

of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been 

considered. 

Supporting the Council’s Standards Committee 

(4) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will contribute to 

the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct by providing support 
to the Council’s Standards Committee. 

Receiving reports 

(5) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will receive and 

act on reports referred to him by ethical standards officers under the Local 

Government Act 2000, and decisions of case tribunals given by notice to the 

Council’s Standards Committee under the 2000 Act. 

Conducting investigations or taking other action 

(6) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will conduct 

investigations into matters referred by the Standards Committee or take other 

action as may be directed by the Committee following allegations that members are 

in breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct and make reports or recommendations 
in respect of them to the Standards Committee.  

Register of Members’ Interests 

(7) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will maintain the 

Register of Members’ Interests which members and co-opted members are required 

to complete under the terms of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and Co-

opted Members.  The register is available for public inspection at Council Offices, 

Doncaster Gate, Doncaster Road, Rotherham, S65 1DJ and on the Council’s 
website. 

Proper officer for access to information 

(8) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will ensure that 

executive decisions, together with the reasons for those decisions and relevant 

officer reports and background papers, are made publicly available as soon as 

possible. 

Contributing to corporate management 

(9) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will contribute to 

the corporate management of the Council, in particular through the provision of 

professional, legal and constitutional advice and advising whether decisions of the 

executive are in accordance with the budget and policy framework. 

Providing advice 

(10) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) will provide 

advice to all Councillors on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions, 

maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and the budget and policy 

framework, and will support and advise councillors and officers in their respective 
roles. 

Page 27



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

Legal proceedings 

(11) The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) is authorised to 

institute and defend matters on behalf of the Council in respect of legal proceedings 
in any court or tribunal. 

Restrictions on posts 

(12) The monitoring officer cannot be the chief finance officer or the head of paid 

service. 

17 The chief finance officer’s role 

Ensuring lawfulness and financial prudence of decision-making 

(1) After consulting with the Chief Executive and the Assistant Chief Executive 

(Legal and Democratic Services), the Strategic Director of Finance will report to the 

full Council or to the executive (in relation to an executive function) and the District 
Auditor if he considers that any proposal, decision or course of action – 

• will involve incurring unlawful expenditure; 

• is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss or deficiency;   

• will result in the Council entering an item of account unlawfully.   

Such a report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision being 

implemented until the report has been considered. 

Administration of financial affairs 

(2) The Strategic Director of Finance will have responsibility for the administration 

of the financial affairs of the Council. 

(3) The Strategic Director of Finance will advise the Cabinet in making its proposals 

for the budget and the Council upon setting the budget, including advice as to the 

level of reserves and balances that should be maintained by the Council.  He will 
also advise on the establishment and use of reserves. 

Contributing to corporate management 

(4) The Strategic Director of Finance will contribute to the corporate management 
of the Council, in particular through the provision of professional financial advice. 

Providing advice 

(5) The Strategic Director of Finance will provide advice to all councillors on the 

scope of powers and authority to take decisions, maladministration, financial 

impropriety, probity and the budget and policy framework, and will support and 

advise councillors and officers in their respective roles. 

Provision of financial information 

(6) The Strategic Director of Finance will provide financial information to the media, 

members of the public and the community. 

PART V 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Page 28



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

18  Finance, contracts and legal matters 

(1) The Council’s Financial Regulations govern the financial management of the 

Council. 

 

(2) The Council’s Standing Orders govern the financial management, the making of 

contracts, financial regulations and the use of the Common Seal of the Council. 

19  Review and revision of the Constitution 

Duty to monitor and review the constitution 

(1) The Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 

and Strategic Director of Finance will monitor and review the operation of the 

Constitution to ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution are given full 
effect. 

Protocol for monitoring and review of the Constitution 

(2) In reviewing the operation of the Constitution, the Chief Executive, Assistant 

Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) and Strategic Director of Finance 
may - 

• observe meetings of different parts of the member and officer structure; 

• undertake an audit trail of a sample of decisions; 

•    record and analyse issues raised with them by members, officers, the public 

and other relevant stakeholders; and compare Council practices with national 

examples of best practice or with the practices of other comparable 
authorities. 

Changes to the Constitution 

(3) The full Council will only approve changes to the Constitution after considering 

proposals from the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and 

Democratic Services) and Strategic Director of Finance.  However, the Assistant 

Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) may make clerical amendments to 

the Constitution to reflect any changes in legislation or changes in the title and 

responsibilities of Council officers or bodies without need for reference to the 

Council. 

(4) The Council must take reasonable steps to consult with local electors and other 

interested persons in the borough when drawing up proposals to change from a 

leader and cabinet form of executive, to an elected Mayor and Cabinet form of 
executive or vice versa. 

20 Suspension and publication of the Constitution 

Limit to suspension 

(1) The articles of the Constitution may not be suspended. 

Publication 

(2) The Chief Executive will give a printed copy of the Constitution to each member 

of the Council upon delivery to him of that person’s declaration of acceptance of 

office on the member first being elected to the Council. 

Page 29



G:\legal_sec\Constitution\Constitution 2010\The Constitution 
Revised April 2010 

 

(3) The Democratic Services Manager will ensure that copies of the Constitution are 

available for inspection at council offices, libraries and other appropriate locations, 

including the internet, and can be purchased by members of the local press and the 
public on payment of a reasonable fee. 

(4) The Democratic Services Manager will ensure that a summary of the 

Constitution is made widely available within the area and is updated as necessary. 

 

Page 30



 

 
Page 1 

 

 
 
 
1. Meeting: Council 

2. Date: 21st April 2010 

3. Title: Absence from Council due to illness 

4. Directorate: Chief Executive’s 

 
5. Summary 
 
To consider approving the absence of Councillor Clarke from meetings of the 
Council as a result of illness. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the Council note Councillor Clarke’s failure to attend 
council meetings due to long-term illness and, for the purposes of section 85 
(1) of the Local Government Act 1972, approve his absence from council 
meetings so long as he remains unfit to attend due to illness.   
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 15Page 31



 

 
Page 2 

 
7.  Proposals and Details  
 
Section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that if a Member of a local 
authority fails throughout a period of six consecutive months from the date of his last 
attendance to attend any meeting of the Authority he shall, unless the failure is due 
to some reason approved by the Authority before the expiry of that period, cease to 
be a Member of the Authority. 
 
Councillor Clarke’s last recorded attendance is on 12th November, when he attended 
the Adult Services’ Scrutiny Panel and also the Standards Committee.  Councillor 
Clarke is suffering from a serious illness and has been unable to attend any 
meetings of the Council since that date. 
 
It is open to the Council to approve Councillor Clarke’s illness as a reason for his 
non-attendance.  Failing this, Councillor Clarke would need to attend a meeting prior 
to 12th May, which is difficult for him at the present time. 
  
8. Finance 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
If the reason for Councillor Clarke’s absence is not approved and he is unable to 
attend any Council meeting or represent the Council at any meeting prior to 12th May 
2010, then he would cease to be a Member of the Council and the Council would be 
required to make a declaration of a vacancy. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Council has given approval in the past where a Member has had serious health 
problems. 
 
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 
 
Contact Name:  
Tim Mumford, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services), RMBC,  
ext 23500, tim.mumford@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 32


	Agenda
	14 Council Constitution - report herewith
	Report for Council Meeting 2104 10(1) The Constitution revised April 2010

	15 Absence from Council due to illness - report herewith

